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OPINION
PER CURIAM:

Vincent E. Lineberger appeals hisjury convictions and sentence for
making false statementsin violation of 18 U.S.C.A.§ 1001 (West
Supp. 1999) and 18 U.S.C. § 1010 (1994); wire fraud in violation of
18 U.S.C. § 1343 (1994); money laundering in violation of 18
U.S.C.A. 88 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) (West Supp. 1999) and 18 U.S.C.

§ 1957 (1994); making fal se statementsin connection with a bank-
ruptcy proceeding in violation of 18 U.S.C.A. § 152 (West 1994 &
Supp. 1999); and bankruptcy fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C.A. § 157
(West Supp. 1999). Lineberger was sentenced to concurrent terms of
sixty months' imprisonment on eleven of the thirteen counts for
which he was convicted and concurrent terms of twenty-four months
imprisonment on the remaining two counts. He was al so ordered to
pay $43,304.48 in restitution and a $650 special assessment.

On appesdl, Lineberger contends that: (1) the court abused its dis-
cretion in denying his request to give a"missing witness' jury instruc-
tion; (2) two counts of hisindictment were duplicitous and that the
court erred by not compelling the Government to elect a theory under
those counts; (3) one count of his indictment was constructively
amended; and (4) the court abused its discretion in denying his
motion for amistrial. After reviewing the parties briefs, the record,
and the applicable legal principles, we affirm.

We find that the court did not abuse its discretion in denying Line-
berger's request to give a"missing witness' jury instruction. See
United States v. Brooks, 928 F.2d 1403, 1412 (4th Cir. 1991); United
Statesv. Rallins, 862 F.2d 1282, 1297 (7th Cir. 1988). We aso find
that counts sixteen and seventeen of the indictment were not duplicit-
ous because they did not join in a single count two or more distinct
and separate offenses. See United States v. Hawkes, 753 F.2d 355,
357 (4th Cir. 1985). Thus, Lineberger's argument that the court erred
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in not compelling the prosecution to elect a theory under those counts
iswithout merit.

Furthermore, we find that count eighteen was not constructively
amended, nor did a variance occur that prejudiced Lineberger. See
United Statesv. Fletcher, 74 F.3d 49, 53 (4th Cir. 1996) (holding that
variance violates defendant's rights only if he can prove he was preju-
diced by variance); United Statesv. Floresca, 38 F.3d 706, 710 (4th
Cir. 1994) (en banc) (holding that for constructive amendment to have
occurred, the court's jury instruction must have exposed defendant to
criminal "charges that are not made in the indictment itself"). Finally,
we find no abuse of discretion in the district court's denial of Lineber-
ger's motion for amistrial based upon the prosecutor's allegedly
improper remarks. See United Statesv. Mitchell , 1 F.3d 235, 240 (4th
Cir. 1993).

Accordingly, we affirm Lineberger's convictions and sentence and
deny Lineberger's motion to file a pro se supplemental brief. We dis-
pense with oral argument because the facts and legal contentions are
adequately presented in the materials before the court and argument
would not aid the decisional process.

AFFIRMED



